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I. INTRODUCTION

The Theodore Roosevelt Association renovated the third
floor of Sagamore Hill inm 1952 to provide exhibition rooms for
the Rocsevelt family memorabilia.
During the past year the interior of "Qld Orchard" was
adapted to exhibit the material contained in the four exhibition
rooms on the third floor of Sagamore Hill. The removal of the
exhibits resulted in empty rooms opening on the visitor's tour
route to the famous Gun Room, 2lso on the third floor.
The Advisory Committee and the Sagamore Hill Committee
of the Theodore Roosevelt Association, under the chairmanship of
Mrs. Reginald Rose, is interested in restoring the four exhibition
rooms to their original functions by the reconstruction of the
partitions to their original locations. In this manner the third
floor would interpret the family life of the Roosevelt's together
with that of their house servants.
Mrs. Richard Derby, daughter of Theodore Roosevelt, has
described the former functions of the various rooms and the
general furnishing scheme. _
Involved in the restoration are the Schoolroom, Linen
Room, Sewing Room, Trunk Room, the maids' and coolt's rooms and
one family bedroom.
The proposed demolition and construction work is con-
fined to a limited area in the south-central section of the

third floor.




s
Contained in this report are the descriptions of the
present rooms, the recommendations for the proposed restoration
and a cost estimate. A copy of the Chapman, Evens and Delehanty
sketch showing the changes made in 1952 is included in the
Appendix, as well as a2 preliminary plan showing the proposed

restoration.




ITI. EXISTING CONDITIONS

A. North Rooms - Central Section

In 1952 two exhibition rooms were created from the two
north rooms, formerly a family bedroom and the schoolroom. At
the same time an additional staircase was added to provide visitor
eirculation. The staircase reduced the size of the former family
bedroom and the approach o the stairway cut a corner out of the
adjoining schoolroom.

The fioors of these two rooms are the original pine,
tongue and groove flooring. The original wallpaper has been re-
moved and the plaster walls, ceiling and woodworlt are presently
painted. The weoodwork of these two rooms is original except
where new doorways had been cut as a result of the alterations.

B. South Rooms- Central Section

The two former maids rooms were enlarged to serve as ex-
hibition rooms by the removal of the former linen room, passage
and closet next to the long corridor. A new entrence passage was
created to provide amccess to the rooms, & cased opening cut into
the partition between the rooms and a closet walled-in as a part
of the renovatiocn.

The floors of both rooms are covered with rubber tile.
The plaster walls are covered with a marbelized wallpaper. The
window trim is the originel Victorian beaded moulding. The
baseboards and the trim on the room sides of the door openings

are modern and do not match the original work. The hall side of




2.
the door openings, however, have been trimmed with the original
trim used throughout the third floor.

When the original closet, light well and short passage
were removed from the south side of the long corridor, the room
entrances were rebuilt with a short entry terminating in a
plaster arch over the room doors.

C. EFEast Rooms

The east wing rooms consist of a trunk and sewing room
on the south side, water tank room and cock's room on the north
side.

The trunk room is in reality a long, narrow closet under
the eaves. The walls are plastered over sawn lath as in the house
proper. A large section of the plaster on the sloping south wall
of the room has fallen. HNo paint or wallpaper was used on the
plaster. The floor, baseboard and door trim are varnished.

The sewing room is reletively untouched from the original {
except for the removal of wallpaper. Extensive plaster patching
vas done in the 1952 renovation. The beaded, varnished trim is in
place around the doors and windows and the built-up baseboard is
original as well. An unusual feature of this room and the coock's
room is the triangular window placed high above the closet doors
following the gable line on either side of the central chimney.

On the north side of the corridor the water tank room
entrance has been walled off by a fire-hose cabinet set in a

plaster panel within the door frame. The only entrance to the




3.
room is by means of a small plywood panel in the west wall of the
Cook's Room. The tank room is unfinished and has only a narrow
floor area slong the corridor wall, The water tank has been re-
moved and the area is unused. The cook's room is almost identical
to the sewing room described above except for a slightly longer
length. The conditions within the room as regards plaster and

trim are also identical to those in the sewing room.




III. RECOMMENDATIONS

The recommendations for the partial restoration of the
third floor areas include the following:

1. Removal of the 1952 partitions as shown on the
accompanying plan.

2. Restoration of the original pessage to the maids'
rooms on the south.

3. Restoration of the original linen room complete
with drawers and shelving.

4. Closing of the opening between the maids' rooms.

5. Reopening of the closet in one maid's room and the
restoration of closet in the other.

6. Removal of false partition in the southeast maid's
Yoom.

7. Patching of plaster in trunk room.

8. Refinishing of woodwork and papering of rooms as
indicated on plan.

9. A1l new trim, doors and hardware to match the

original vhere the original cannot be reused.




IV. COST ESTIMATE

Removal of partitions and tile flooring.....$ 300.00

Carpentry (including plaster patching)

TEDOY S § ¢ s 50000 s § 8 3 3 BRESwes §% § § $wsmve 800.00

Material...... Secs i nd s BekEA AT B S BN ... Loo.oo
Painting

DEBOY: o » 5 samasrsis § 5 ¥ 5 E S pp—— wisw  HO0W00

Material. ... ssveesnosssnnan bim o n AT 100.00
Wallpaper allowance..... T — .. 800.00

TOTAL $2,800.00
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